

1 agency in another state for that bulk milk tanker. A grade A bulk milk tanker permit  
2 is not transferable between persons or bulk milk tankers. ~~A permit may be issued~~  
3 ~~in the form of an endorsement on a bulk milk tanker license under par. (a).~~ An  
4 application for a permit shall be made on a form provided by the department, ~~and~~  
5 ~~may be included with a license application under par. (a).~~ ~~The.~~ An applicant shall  
6 include with an application for a permit proof that the bulk milk tanker has passed  
7 an inspection conducted within the preceding year by the department or an  
8 individual certified by the department to conduct bulk milk tanker inspections.  
9 Except as provided in sub. (4), the department may not charge a fee for a grade A bulk  
10 milk tanker permit issued under this paragraph.

11 \*~~1062/P1.5~~SECTION 2652. 97.21 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 97.21 (4) (a) *License fee.* An applicant for a ~~bulk milk tanker or~~ milk distributor  
13 license shall pay the license fee specified under sub. (4m).

14 \*~~1062/P1.6~~SECTION 2653. 97.21 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 97.21 (4) (b) *Reinspection fee.* If the department reinspects a bulk milk tanker  
16 or the vehicle or facilities of a milk distributor because the department finds a  
17 violation of this chapter or rules promulgated under this chapter, the department  
18 shall charge the bulk milk tanker operator or milk distributor the reinspection fee  
19 specified under sub. (4m). The reinspection fee is payable when the reinspection is  
20 completed, and is due upon written demand from the department. The department  
21 may issue a demand for payment when it issues a license permit renewal application  
22 to the bulk milk tanker operator or a license renewal application to the milk  
23 distributor.

24 \*~~1062/P1.7~~SECTION 2654. 97.21 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

## SECTION 2654

1           97.21 (4) (c) *Surcharge for operating without a license.* An applicant for a bulk  
2 milk tanker operator or milk distributor license shall pay a license fee surcharge of  
3 \$100 or twice the amount of the annual license fee specified under sub. (4m),  
4 whichever is less, if the department determines that, within one year prior to  
5 submitting the license application, the applicant operated without a license or grade  
6 A permit in violation of this section. Payment of this license fee surcharge does not  
7 relieve the applicant of any other civil or criminal liability ~~which~~ that results from  
8 a violation of sub. (2) or (3), but does not constitute evidence of any violation of law.

9           \*~~1062/P1.8~~\*SECTION 2655. 97.21 (4m) (intro.) of the statutes is renumbered  
10 97.21 (4m) and amended to read:

11           97.21 (4m) FEE AMOUNTS. ~~Unless otherwise established by The department~~  
12 ~~rule,~~ shall establish the fees required under sub. (4) (a) and (b) ~~are:~~ by rule.

13           \*~~1062/P1.9~~\*SECTION 2656. 97.21 (4m) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

14           \*~~1062/P1.10~~\*SECTION 2657. 97.21 (4m) (b) of the statutes is repealed.

15           \*~~1062/P1.11~~\*SECTION 2658. 97.21 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

16           97.21 (5) LICENSING AND PERMITTING CONTINGENT ON PAYMENT OF FEES. The  
17 department may not issue or renew a grade A bulk milk tanker permit or milk  
18 distributor license unless the permit or license applicant pays all fees ~~which~~ that are  
19 due and payable by the applicant under sub. (4), as set forth in a statement from the  
20 department. The department shall refund a fee paid under protest if the department  
21 determines that the fee was not due and payable as a condition of permitting or  
22 licensing under this section.

23           \*~~0602/P4.28~~\*SECTION 2659. 97.25 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

24           97.25 (3) RULES. The department shall promulgate rules authorizing the  
25 operator of a dairy plant licensed under s. 97.20, or a retail food establishment

1 licensed under s. 97.30 ~~or a restaurant with a permit under s. 254.64~~ who complies  
2 with the rules to place upon the label of a dairy product the statement  
3 “Farmer-certified rBGH free.” or an equivalent statement that is not false or  
4 misleading. The statement shall be based upon affidavits from milk producers  
5 stating that the milk producers do not use synthetic bovine growth hormone for the  
6 production of milk.

7 \*~~0602/P4.29~~\*SECTION 2660. 97.27 (1) (b) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 97.27 (1) (b) 3. A retail food establishment, ~~restaurant~~ or other retail facility  
9 at which food is stored on a temporary basis incidental to retail preparation or sale.

10 \*~~0602/P4.30~~\*SECTION 2661. 97.29 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 97.29 (1) (c) “Bottling establishment” means any place where drinking water,  
12 soda water beverage or alcohol beverage is manufactured or bottled for sale.  
13 “Bottling establishment” does not include a retail establishment engaged in the  
14 preparation and sale of beverages under a license issued under s. 125.26 or 125.51  
15 or a ~~restaurant permit~~ license issued under s. 97.30 for a restaurant or other ~~permit~~  
16 license issued under s. ~~254.64~~ 97.605.

17 \*~~0602/P4.31~~\*SECTION 2662. 97.29 (1) (g) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

18 97.29 (1) (g) 3. The retail preparation and processing of meals for sale directly  
19 to consumers or through vending machines if the preparation and processing is  
20 covered under a ~~restaurant permit or other permit~~ license issued under s. ~~254.64~~  
21 97.605.

22 \*~~0602/P4.32~~\*SECTION 2663. 97.29 (1) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 97.29 (1) (h) “Food processing plant” means any place where food processing  
24 is conducted. “Food processing plant” does not include any establishment subject to  
25 the requirements of s. 97.30 ~~or any restaurant or other~~ an establishment holding a

## SECTION 2663

1 permit license under s. ~~254.64~~ 97.605, to the extent that the activities of that  
2 establishment are covered by s. 97.30 or the permit license under s. ~~254.64~~ 97.605.

3 \*~~0602/P4.33~~**SECTION 2664.** 97.30 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 97.30 (1) (c) “Retail food establishment” means a permanent or mobile food  
5 processing facility where food processing is conducted primarily for direct retail sale  
6 to consumers at the facility, a mobile facility from which potentially hazardous food  
7 is sold to consumers at retail or a permanent facility from which food is sold to  
8 consumers at retail, whether or not that facility sells potentially hazardous food or  
9 is engaged in food processing. “Retail food establishment” ~~does not include~~ includes  
10 a restaurant or ~~other establishment~~ temporary restaurant, but does not include an  
11 establishment holding a permit license under s. ~~254.64~~ 97.605, to the extent that the  
12 activities of the establishment are covered by that ~~permit license~~.

13 \*~~0602/P4.34~~**SECTION 2665.** 97.30 (2) (b) 1. c. of the statutes is amended to  
14 read:

15 97.30 (2) (b) 1. c. A retail food establishment which is exempted from licensing  
16 by the department by rule. If ~~a restaurant or other~~ an establishment for which a  
17 permit license has been issued under s. ~~254.64~~ 97.605 is incidentally engaged in  
18 operating a retail food establishment at the same location, the department may  
19 exempt by rule the ~~restaurant or~~ establishment from licensing under this section.  
20 ~~Rules under this subd. 1. c. shall conform to a memorandum of understanding~~  
21 ~~between the department and the department of health services, under which the~~  
22 ~~department of health services agrees to inspect the retail food establishment~~  
23 ~~operations on behalf of the department.~~

24 \*~~0602/P4.35~~**SECTION 2666.** 97.30 (2) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

1           97.30 (2) (c) *Pre-licensing inspection.* The department or an agent city or  
2 county may not issue a license for a new retail food establishment until it inspects  
3 the new retail food establishment for compliance with this section and rules  
4 promulgated under this section. A licensed retail food establishment is not  
5 considered a new retail food establishment under this paragraph solely because of  
6 a change in ownership, or solely because of alterations in the retail food  
7 establishment.

8           \*~~0602/P4.36~~\*SECTION 2667. 97.30 (3m) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to  
9 read:

10           97.30 (3m) FEE AMOUNTS. (intro.) The department shall specify by rule the  
11 amount of the fees under sub. (3) for a restaurant. Unless otherwise required by  
12 department rule, the fees required under sub. (3) for a retail food establishment other  
13 than a restaurant are:

14           \*~~0602/P4.37~~\*SECTION 2668. 97.30 (3m) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended  
15 to read:

16           97.30 (3m) (a) (intro.) For a retail food establishment, other than a restaurant,  
17 that has annual food sales of \$25,000 or more but less than \$1,000,000 and that  
18 processes potentially hazardous food, the following amounts:

19           \*~~0602/P4.38~~\*SECTION 2669. 97.30 (3m) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended  
20 to read:

21           97.30 (3m) (b) (intro.) For a retail food establishment, other than a restaurant,  
22 that has annual food sales of \$1,000,000 or more and that processes potentially  
23 hazardous food, the following amounts:

24           \*~~0602/P4.39~~\*SECTION 2670. 97.30 (3m) (c) (intro.) of the statutes is amended  
25 to read:

## SECTION 2670

1           97.30 (3m) (c) (intro.) For a retail food establishment, other than a restaurant,  
2 that has annual food sales of \$25,000 or more and that is engaged in food processing,  
3 but that does not process potentially hazardous food, the following amounts:

4           \*-0602/P4.40\*SECTION 2671. 97.30 (3m) (cm) of the statutes is amended to  
5 read:

6           97.30 (3m) (cm) For a retail food establishment, other than a restaurant, that  
7 has annual food sales of less than \$25,000 and that is engaged in food processing, an  
8 annual license fee of \$40 and a reinspection fee of \$40.

9           \*-0602/P4.41\*SECTION 2672. 97.30 (3m) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

10          97.30 (3m) (d) For a retail food establishment, other than a restaurant, that  
11 is not engaged in food processing, an annual license fee of \$20 and a reinspection fee  
12 of \$50.

13          \*-0602/P4.42\*SECTION 2673. 97.41 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

14          97.41 (1m) In the administration of this chapter, the department may enter  
15 into a written agreement with a local health department, if the jurisdictional area  
16 of the local health department has a population greater than 5,000, which designates  
17 the local health department as the agent of the department of agriculture, trade and  
18 consumer protection for issuing licenses to and making investigations or inspections  
19 of retail food establishments, as defined in s. 97.30 (1) (c). When the designation is  
20 made, no license other than the license issued by the local health department under  
21 this section may be required by the department of agriculture, trade and consumer  
22 protection or the local health department for the same operations. The department  
23 of agriculture, trade and consumer protection shall ~~coordinate~~ oversee the  
24 designation of agents under this section ~~with the department of health services~~ to  
25 ensure that, to the extent feasible, the same local health department is granted agent

1 status under this section and under s. ~~254.69 (2)~~ 97.615 (2). Except as otherwise  
2 provided by the department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection, a local  
3 health department granted agent status shall regulate all types of establishments  
4 for which this subsection permits the department of agriculture, trade and consumer  
5 protection to delegate regulatory authority.

6 \*~~0602/P4.43~~\*SECTION 2674. 97.41 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 97.41 (4) (a) Except as provided in par. (b), a local health department granted  
8 agent status under this section shall establish and collect the license fee for retail  
9 food establishments, as defined in s. 97.30 (1) (c). The local health department may  
10 establish separate fees for ~~preinspections~~ pre-licensing inspections of new  
11 establishments, for ~~preinspections~~ pre-licensing inspections of existing  
12 establishments for which a person intends to be the new operator or for the issuance  
13 of duplicate licenses. No fee may exceed the local health department's reasonable  
14 costs of issuing licenses to, making investigations and inspections of, and providing  
15 education, training and technical assistance to the establishments, plus the state fee  
16 established under sub. (5). A local health department which is granted agent status  
17 under this section or under s. ~~254.69~~, 97.615 may issue a single license and establish  
18 and collect a single fee which authorizes the operation on the same premises of more  
19 than one type of establishment with respect to which it is granted agent status under  
20 this section or under s. ~~254.69 (2)~~ 97.615 (2).

21 \*~~0602/P4.44~~\*SECTION 2675. 97.42 (3) (em) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 97.42 (3) (em) *Slaughter of farm-raised deer*. The requirements of pars. (a) and  
23 (b) do not apply to the slaughter of a farm-raised deer if its meat food products are  
24 not sold by a person holding a restaurant permit under s. ~~254.64~~ or by an operator  
25 of a retail food establishment, as defined under s. 97.30 (1) (c). The operator of an

1 establishment in which farm-raised deer, their carcasses or their meat food products  
2 are examined and inspected under this subsection shall pay the department for the  
3 cost of the department's examination and inspection.

4 **\*-0602/P4.45\*SECTION 2676.** Subchapter III (title) of chapter 97 [precedes  
5 97.603] of the statutes is created to read:

6 **CHAPTER 97**

7 **SUBCHAPTER III**

8 **LODGING AND VENDING MACHINES**

9 **\*-0602/P4.46\*SECTION 2677.** Subchapter IV (title) of chapter 97 [precedes  
10 97.67] of the statutes is created to read:

11 **CHAPTER 97**

12 **SUBCHAPTER IV**

13 **RECREATIONAL SANITATION**

14 **\*-0602/P4.47\*SECTION 2678.** Subchapter V (title) of chapter 97 [precedes  
15 97.70] of the statutes is created to read:

16 **CHAPTER 97**

17 **SUBCHAPTER V**

18 **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

19 **\*-0602/P4.48\*SECTION 2679.** 97.70 of the statutes is created to read:

20 **97.70 Authority of department of safety and professional services.**

21 Nothing in this chapter affects the authority of the department of safety and  
22 professional services relative to places of employment, elevators, boilers, fire  
23 escapes, fire protection, or the construction of public buildings.

24 **\*-0602/P4.49\*SECTION 2680.** 97.703 of the statutes is created to read:



1           **97.703 Joint employment.** The department and the department of safety  
2 and professional services may employ experts, inspectors, or other assistants jointly.

3           \*~~1191/P2.59~~\***SECTION 2681.** 100.207 (6) (em) 2. of the statutes is amended to  
4 read:

5           100.207 (6) (em) 2. The department shall submit the recommendations under  
6 subd. 1., if any, to the legislature as part of the report required under s. 227.19 (2)  
7 ~~and to the board of agriculture, trade and consumer protection.~~

8           \*~~0602/P4.50~~\***SECTION 2682.** 100.36 of the statutes is amended to read:

9           **100.36 Frauds; substitute for butter; advertisement.** No person may use  
10 the word “butter” in any way in connection or association with the sale or exposure  
11 for sale or advertisement of any substance designed to be used as a substitute for  
12 butter. No person may use terms such as “cream”, “creamery” or “dairy”, or the name  
13 or representation of any breed of dairy cattle, or any combination of such words and  
14 representation, or any other words or symbols or combinations thereof commonly  
15 used in the sale of butter unless at least 40% of the substitute is butterfat. If the term  
16 “butter” is used in connection with the name of any such product, it shall be qualified  
17 so as to distinguish it from butter as defined in s. 97.01 ~~(1)~~ (1r).

18           \*~~1215/P3.333~~\***SECTION 2683.** 100.45 (1) (dm) of the statutes is amended to  
19 read:

20           100.45 (1) (dm) “State agency” means any office, department, agency,  
21 institution of higher education, association, society, or other body in state  
22 government created or authorized to be created by the constitution or any law which  
23 is entitled to expend moneys appropriated by law, including the legislature and the  
24 courts, ~~the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority, the Bradley~~  
25 ~~Center Sports and Entertainment Corporation, the University of Wisconsin~~

1 Hospitals and Clinics Authority, the University of Wisconsin System Authority, the  
2 Wisconsin Health and Educational Facilities Authority, the Wisconsin Aerospace  
3 Authority, the ~~Wisconsin Economic Development Corporation~~ Forward Wisconsin  
4 Development Authority, and the Fox River Navigational System Authority.

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 100.45 (1) (dm). This SECTION has been affected by  
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -0971/P4 and -1215/P2.

5 **\*-0807/P6.235\*SECTION 2684.** 100.67 of the statutes is created to read:

6 **100.67 Private trade, business, technical, and other schools. (1)**

7 DEFINITIONS. In this section, unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

8 (b) "Course" has the meaning given in s. 440.52 (1) (b).

9 (c) "Course of instruction" has the meaning given in s. 440.52 (1) (c).

10 (d) "Person" has the meaning given in s. 440.52 (1) (d).

11 (e) "School" has the meaning given in s. 440.52 (1) (e).

12 (2) RESPONSIBILITIES. The department shall protect the general public by  
13 investigating complaints and potential violations related to this section and s.  
14 440.52.

15 (3) RULE-MAKING POWER. The department may promulgate rules and establish  
16 standards necessary to administer this section.

17 **\*-1461/P2.225\*SECTION 2685.** 101.01 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 101.01 (4) "Employer" means any person, firm, corporation, state, county,  
19 town, city, village, school district, sewer district, drainage district, ~~long-term care~~  
20 ~~district~~ and other public or quasi-public corporations as well as any agent, manager,  
21 representative or other person having control or custody of any employment, place  
22 of employment or of any employee.

1           \*~~-0807/P6.236~~\***SECTION 2686.** 101.02 (20) (b) of the statutes is amended to  
2 read:

3           101.02 (20) (b) Except as provided in par. (e), the department of ~~safety and~~  
4 ~~professional services~~ may not issue or renew a license unless each applicant who is  
5 an individual provides the department of ~~safety and professional services~~ with his  
6 or her social security number and each applicant that is not an individual provides  
7 the department of ~~safety and professional services~~ with its federal employer  
8 identification number. The department of ~~safety and professional services~~ may not  
9 disclose the social security number or the federal employer identification number of  
10 an applicant for a license or license renewal except to the department of revenue for  
11 the sole purpose of requesting certifications under s. 73.0301 and to the department  
12 of workforce development for the sole purpose of requesting certifications under s.  
13 108.227.

14           \*~~-0807/P6.237~~\***SECTION 2687.** 101.02 (20) (c) of the statutes is amended to  
15 read:

16           101.02 (20) (c) The department of ~~safety and professional services~~ may not  
17 issue or renew a license if the department of revenue certifies under s. 73.0301 that  
18 the applicant or licensee is liable for delinquent taxes or if the department of  
19 workforce development certifies under s. 108.227 that the applicant or licensee is  
20 liable for delinquent unemployment insurance contributions.

21           \*~~-0807/P6.238~~\***SECTION 2688.** 101.02 (20) (d) of the statutes is amended to  
22 read:

23           101.02 (20) (d) The department of ~~safety and professional services~~ shall revoke  
24 a license if the department of revenue certifies under s. 73.0301 that the licensee is  
25 liable for delinquent taxes or if the department of workforce development certifies

1 under s. 108.227 that the licensee is liable for delinquent unemployment insurance  
2 contributions.

3 **\*-0807/P6.239\*SECTION 2689.** 101.02 (20) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
4 read:

5 101.02 (20) (e) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
6 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew  
7 a license shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to  
8 the department of safety and professional services that the applicant does not have  
9 a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the  
10 department of children and families.

11 **\*-0807/P6.240\*SECTION 2690.** 101.02 (21) (b) of the statutes is amended to  
12 read:

13 101.02 (21) (b) As provided in the memorandum of understanding under s.  
14 49.857 and except as provided in par. (e), the department of safety and professional  
15 services may not issue or renew a license unless the applicant provides the  
16 department of safety and professional services with his or her social security number.  
17 The department of safety and professional services may not disclose the social  
18 security number except that the department of safety and professional services may  
19 disclose the social security number of an applicant for a license under par. (a) or a  
20 renewal of a license under par. (a) to the department of children and families for the  
21 sole purpose of administering s. 49.22.

22 **\*-0807/P6.241\*SECTION 2691.** 101.02 (21) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
23 read:

24 101.02 (21) (e) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social  
25 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew

1 a license shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to  
2 the department of safety and professional services that the applicant does not have  
3 a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the  
4 department of children and families.

5 \*~~0602/P4.51~~SECTION 2692. 101.05 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 101.05 (2) A bed and breakfast establishment, as defined under s. ~~254.61(1)~~  
7 97.01 (1g), is not subject to building codes adopted by the department under this  
8 subchapter.

9 \*~~0807/P6.242~~SECTION 2693. 101.12 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to  
10 read:

11 101.12 (1) (intro.) Except for plans that are reviewed by the department of  
12 health services under ss. 50.02 (2) (b) and, 50.025, 50.36 (2), or 50.92 (3m), the  
13 department shall require the submission of essential drawings, calculations and  
14 specifications for public buildings, public structures and places of employment  
15 including the following components:

16 \*~~0602/P4.52~~SECTION 2694. 101.123 (1) (bn) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
17 read:

18 101.123 (1) (bn) 1. A bed and breakfast establishment, as defined in s. ~~254.61~~  
19 (1) 97.01 (1g).

20 \*~~0602/P4.53~~SECTION 2695. 101.123 (1) (bn) 2. of the statutes is amended to  
21 read:

22 101.123 (1) (bn) 2. A hotel, as defined in s. ~~254.61(3)~~ 97.01 (7).

23 \*~~0602/P4.54~~SECTION 2696. 101.123 (1) (bn) 3. of the statutes is amended to  
24 read:

## SECTION 2696

1           101.123 (1) (bn) 3. A tourist rooming house, as defined in s. ~~254.61 (6)~~ 97.01  
2           (15k).

3           \*~~-0602/P4.55~~\*SECTION 2697. 101.123 (1) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

4           101.123 (1) (f) “Restaurant” ~~means an establishment as defined~~ has the  
5           meaning given in s. ~~254.61 (5)~~ 97.01 (14g).

6           \*~~-0971/P5.571~~\*SECTION 2698. 101.123 (2) (d) 4. of the statutes is amended to  
7           read:

8           101.123 (2) (d) 4. A location that is 25 feet or less from a residence hall or  
9           dormitory that ~~is owned or operated by~~ the state leases to the Board of Regents of the  
10          University of Wisconsin System Authority.

11          \*~~-0602/P4.56~~\*SECTION 2699. 101.128 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

12          101.128 (1) (c) “Hotel” has the meaning given in s. ~~254.61 (3)~~ 97.01 (7).

13          \*~~-0602/P4.57~~\*SECTION 2700. 101.128 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

14          101.128 (1) (e) “Restaurant” has the meaning given in s. ~~254.61 (5)~~ 97.01 (14g).

15          \*~~-0971/P5.572~~\*SECTION 2701. 101.14 (4) (b) 3. a. of the statutes is amended  
16          to read:

17          101.14 (4) (b) 3. a. Every residence hall and dormitory over 60 feet in height,  
18          the initial construction of which was begun before April 26, 2000, that ~~is owned or~~  
19          ~~operated by~~ the state leases to the board of regents of the University of Wisconsin  
20          System Authority to contain an automatic fire sprinkler system on each floor by  
21          January 1, 2006.

22          \*~~-0971/P5.573~~\*SECTION 2702. 101.14 (4) (b) 3. b. of the statutes is amended  
23          to read:

24          101.14 (4) (b) 3. b. Every residence hall and dormitory, the initial construction  
25          of which is begun on or after April 26, 2000, that ~~is owned or operated by~~ the state

1 leases to the board of regents of the University of Wisconsin System Authority to  
2 have an automatic fire sprinkler system installed on each floor at the time the  
3 residence hall or dormitory is constructed.

4 \*~~-0971/P5.574~~\*SECTION 2703. 101.14 (4) (b) 3. c. of the statutes is amended  
5 to read:

6 101.14 (4) (b) 3. c. Every residence hall and dormitory over 60 feet in height,  
7 the initial construction of which was begun before January 7, 2006, that is owned or  
8 operated by an institution of higher education, other than a residence hall or  
9 dormitory that is ~~owned or operated by~~ the state leases to the Board of Regents of the  
10 University of Wisconsin System Authority, to contain an automatic fire sprinkler  
11 system on each floor by January 1, 2014.

12 \*~~-0971/P5.575~~\*SECTION 2704. 101.14 (4) (b) 3. d. of the statutes is amended  
13 to read:

14 101.14 (4) (b) 3. d. Every residence hall and dormitory, the initial construction  
15 of which is begun on or after January 7, 2006, that is owned or operated by an  
16 institution of higher education, other than a residence hall or dormitory that is  
17 ~~owned or operated by~~ the state leases to the Board of Regents of the University of  
18 Wisconsin System Authority, to have an automatic fire sprinkler system installed on  
19 each floor at the time the residence hall or dormitory is constructed.

20 \*~~-0602/P4.58~~\*SECTION 2705. 101.149 (1) (ag) of the statutes is amended to  
21 read:

22 101.149 (1) (ag) “Bed and breakfast establishment” has the meaning given in  
23 s. ~~254.61 (1)~~ 97.01 (1g).

24 \*~~-0602/P4.59~~\*SECTION 2706. 101.149 (1) (cm) of the statutes is amended to  
25 read:

## SECTION 2706

1           101.149 (1) (cm) “Tourist rooming house” has the meaning given in s. ~~254.61~~  
2           ~~(6)~~ 97.01 (15k).

3           \*~~0602/P4.60~~\*SECTION 2707. 101.149 (5) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4           101.149 (5) (c) All of the fuel-burning appliances in the residential building  
5           have sealed combustion units that are inspected as provided in the rules  
6           promulgated by the department under sub. (6) (b) or in the rules promulgated by the  
7           department of ~~health services~~ under s. ~~254.74~~ 97.625 (1) (am).

8           \*~~0807/P6.243~~\*SECTION 2708. 101.149 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to  
9           read:

10           101.149 (6) (b) The department shall promulgate rules, in consultation with  
11           the department of health services, under which the department of ~~safety and~~  
12           ~~professional services~~ shall authorize certified heating, ventilating, and air  
13           conditioning inspectors to conduct regular inspections of sealed combustion units, as  
14           required under sub. (5) (c), for carbon monoxide emissions in residential buildings  
15           other than hotels, tourist rooming houses, and bed and breakfast establishments.  
16           The rules shall specify conditions under which it may issue orders as specified under  
17           sub. (8) (a). The rules may not require the department of ~~safety and professional~~  
18           ~~services~~ to authorize inspection of sealed combustion units during the period in  
19           which the sealed combustion units are covered by a manufacturer’s warranty against  
20           defects.

21           \*~~0807/P6.244~~\*SECTION 2709. 101.149 (8) (a) of the statutes is amended to  
22           read:

23           101.149 (8) (a) If the department of ~~safety and professional services~~ or the  
24           department of health services determines after an inspection of a building under this  
25           section or s. 254.74 (1g) that the owner of the building has violated sub. (2) or (3), the



1        respective department shall issue an order requiring the person to correct the  
2        violation within 5 days or within such shorter period as the respective department  
3        determines is necessary to protect public health and safety. If the person does not  
4        correct the violation within the time required, he or she shall forfeit \$50 for each day  
5        of violation occurring after the date on which the respective department finds that  
6        the violation was not corrected.

7            **\*-0602/P4.61\*SECTION 2710.** 101.149 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by 2015  
8        Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

9            101.149 (8) (a) If the department or the department of ~~health services~~  
10        agriculture, trade and consumer protection determines after an inspection of a  
11        building under this section or s. ~~254.74~~ 97.625 (1g) that the owner of the building has  
12        violated sub. (2) or (3), the respective department shall issue an order requiring the  
13        person to correct the violation within 5 days or within such shorter period as the  
14        respective department determines is necessary to protect public health and safety.  
15        If the person does not correct the violation within the time required, he or she shall  
16        forfeit \$50 for each day of violation occurring after the date on which the respective  
17        department finds that the violation was not corrected.

      \*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 101.149 (8) (a). This SECTION has been affected by  
      drafts with the following LRB numbers: -0602/P4 and -0807/P6.

18            **\*-0807/P6.245\*SECTION 2711.** 101.31 of the statutes is repealed.

19            **\*-0807/P6.246\*SECTION 2712.** 101.573 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to  
20        read:

21            101.573 (3) (a) On or before May 1 in each year, the department shall compile  
22        the fire department dues paid by all insurers under s. 601.93 and the dues paid by  
23        the state fire fund under sub. (1) and funds remaining under par. (b), withhold .5%

**SECTION 2712**

1 and certify to the secretary of administration the proper amount to be paid from the  
2 appropriation under s. ~~20.165 (2)~~ 20.142 (4) (L) to each city, village, or town entitled  
3 to fire department dues under s. 101.575. Annually, on or before August 1, the  
4 secretary of administration shall pay the amounts certified by the department to the  
5 cities, villages and towns eligible under s. 101.575.

6 **\*-0807/P6.247\*SECTION 2713.** 101.573 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 101.573 (5) The department shall promulgate a rule defining “administrative  
8 expenses” for purposes of s. ~~20.165 (2)~~ 20.142 (4) (La).

9 **\*-0602/P4.62\*SECTION 2714.** 101.63 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to  
10 read:

11 101.63 (1) (intro.) Adopt rules which establish standards for the construction  
12 and inspection of one- and 2-family dwellings and components thereof. Where  
13 feasible, the standards used shall be those nationally recognized and shall apply to  
14 the dwelling and to its electrical, heating, ventilating, air conditioning and other  
15 systems, including plumbing, as defined in s. 145.01 (10). No set of rules may be  
16 adopted which has not taken into account the conservation of energy in construction  
17 and maintenance of dwellings and the costs of specific code provisions to home buyers  
18 in relationship to the benefits derived from the provisions. Rules promulgated under  
19 this subsection do not apply to a bed and breakfast establishment, as defined under  
20 s. ~~254.61 (1)~~ 97.01 (1g), except that the rules apply to all of the following:

21 **\*-0602/P4.63\*SECTION 2715.** 101.647 (1) (am) of the statutes is amended to  
22 read:

23 101.647 (1) (am) Notwithstanding s. 101.61 (1), “dwelling” does not include a  
24 tourist rooming house, as defined in s. ~~254.61 (6)~~ 97.01 (15k).

1           \*~~0807/P6.248~~\*SECTION 2716. 101.654 (1m) (e) of the statutes is amended to  
2 read:

3           101.654 (1m) (e) ~~The continuing education approved by the department under~~  
4 ~~par. (b) 1. shall include courses offered by private organizations with whom the~~  
5 ~~department contracts under s. 101.657. The department may approve continuing~~  
6 ~~education courses that are offered by other states.~~

7           \*~~0807/P6.249~~\*SECTION 2717. 101.657 of the statutes is repealed.

8           \*~~0971/P5.576~~\*SECTION 2718. 101.66 (1m) (bn) of the statutes is amended to  
9 read:

10           101.66 (1m) (bn) A person may not provide a written certification under par.  
11 (b) unless the person has been issued a certificate of accomplishment evidencing  
12 certification or recertification under ~~the a~~ lumber grading training program under  
13 ~~s. 36.25 (48) specified by the department~~ and the person has received the certificate  
14 within the 5 years before providing the written certification. The person shall attach  
15 to the written certification a copy of his or her certificate of accomplishment.

16           \*~~0807/P6.250~~\*SECTION 2719. 101.935 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to  
17 read:

18           101.935 (2) (e) Section 254.69 (2), as it applies to an agent for the department  
19 of health services in the administration of s. 254.47, applies to an agent for the  
20 department ~~of safety and professional services~~ in the administration of this section.

21           \*~~0602/P4.64~~\*SECTION 2720. 101.935 (2) (e) of the statutes, as affected by 2015  
22 Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

23           101.935 (2) (e) Section ~~254.69 (2)~~ 97.615 (2), as it applies to an agent for the  
24 department of health ~~services~~ agriculture, trade and consumer protection in the

## SECTION 2720

1 administration of s. ~~254.47~~ 97.67, applies to an agent for the department in the  
2 administration of this section.

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 101.935 (2) (e). This SECTION has been affected by  
drafts with the following LRB numbers: –0602/P3 and –0807/P5.

3 \*~~0807/P6.251~~\*SECTION 2721. 101.951 (7) (a) of the statutes is amended to  
4 read:

5 101.951 (7) (a) ~~The department of safety and professional services~~ may, without  
6 notice, deny the application for a license within 60 days after receipt thereof by  
7 written notice to the applicant, stating the grounds for the denial. Within 30 days  
8 after such notice, the applicant may petition the department of administration to  
9 conduct a hearing to review the denial, and a hearing shall be scheduled with  
10 reasonable promptness. The division of hearings and appeals shall conduct the  
11 hearing. This paragraph does not apply to denials of applications for licenses under  
12 s. 101.02 (21).

13 \*~~0807/P6.252~~\*SECTION 2722. 101.951 (7) (b) of the statutes is amended to  
14 read:

15 101.951 (7) (b) No license may be suspended or revoked except after a hearing  
16 thereon. ~~The department of safety and professional services~~ shall give the licensee  
17 at least 5 days' notice of the time and place of the hearing. The order suspending or  
18 revoking such license shall not be effective until after 10 days' written notice thereof  
19 to the licensee, after such hearing has been had; except that the department ~~of safety~~  
20 ~~and professional services~~, when in its opinion the best interest of the public or the  
21 trade demands it, may suspend a license upon not less than 24 hours' notice of  
22 hearing and with not less than 24 hours' notice of the suspension of the license.  
23 Matters involving suspensions and revocations brought before the department of

1 ~~safety and professional services~~ shall be heard and decided upon by the department  
2 of administration. The division of hearings and appeals shall conduct the hearing.  
3 This paragraph does not apply to licenses that are suspended or revoked under s.  
4 101.02 (21).

5 ~~\*-0807/P6.253\*~~**SECTION 2723.** 101.951 (7) (c) of the statutes is amended to  
6 read:

7 101.951 (7) (c) The department of ~~safety and professional services~~ may inspect  
8 the pertinent books, records, letters and contracts of a licensee. The actual cost of  
9 each such examination shall be paid by such licensee so examined within 30 days  
10 after demand therefor by the department, and the department may maintain an  
11 action for the recovery of such costs in any court of competent jurisdiction.

12 ~~\*-0807/P6.254\*~~**SECTION 2724.** 101.953 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to  
13 read:

14 101.953 (1) (a) A statement that the manufactured home meets those  
15 standards prescribed by law or administrative rule of the department of  
16 administration or of the department of ~~safety and professional services~~ that are in  
17 effect at the time of the manufacture of the manufactured home.

18 ~~\*-0807/P6.255\*~~**SECTION 2725.** 101.973 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 101.973 (8) Deposit the moneys received from the fees under sub. (7) in the  
20 appropriation under s. ~~20.165 (2)~~ 20.142 (4) (j).

21 ~~\*-0971/P5.577\*~~**SECTION 2726.** 101.977 (2) (bn) of the statutes is amended to  
22 read:

23 101.977 (2) (bn) A person may not provide a written certification under par. (b)  
24 unless the person has been issued a certificate of accomplishment evidencing  
25 certification or recertification under ~~the~~ a lumber grading training program under

## SECTION 2726

1 s. ~~36.25 (48)~~ specified by the department and the person has received the certificate  
2 within the 5 years before providing the written certification. The person shall attach  
3 to the written certification a copy of his or her certificate of accomplishment.

4 \*~~0610/P3.27~~\*SECTION 2727. 102.01 (2) (a) of the statutes is renumbered  
5 102.01 (2) (af).

6 \*~~0610/P3.28~~\*SECTION 2728. 102.01 (2) (ad) of the statutes is created to read:  
7 102.01 (2) (ad) “Administrator” means the administrator of the division of  
8 hearings and appeals in the department of administration.

9 \*~~0610/P3.29~~\*SECTION 2729. 102.01 (2) (ag) of the statutes is amended to read:  
10 102.01 (2) (ag) “Commissioner” means ~~a member of the commission~~ the  
11 commissioner of insurance.

12 \*~~0610/P3.30~~\*SECTION 2730. 102.01 (2) (ap) of the statutes is repealed.

13 \*~~0610/P3.31~~\*SECTION 2731. 102.01 (2) (ar) of the statutes is created to read:  
14 102.01 (2) (ar) “Division” means the division of hearings and appeals in the  
15 department of administration.

16 \*~~0610/P3.32~~\*SECTION 2732. 102.01 (2) (bm) of the statutes is amended to  
17 read:

18 102.01 (2) (bm) “General order” means ~~such order as~~ an order that applies  
19 generally throughout the state to all persons, employments, places of employment,  
20 or public buildings, or to all persons, employments ~~or~~, places of employment, or public  
21 buildings of a class under the jurisdiction of the ~~department~~ office. All other orders  
22 of the ~~department~~ office shall be considered special orders.

23 \*~~1461/P2.226~~\*SECTION 2733. 102.01 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to  
24 read:

1           102.01 (2) (d) “Municipality” includes a county, city, town, village, school  
2           district, sewer district, drainage district and ~~long-term care district~~ and other public  
3           or quasi-public corporations.

4           \*~~0610/P3.33~~\*SECTION 2734. 102.01 (2) (dg) of the statutes is created to read:  
5           102.01 (2) (dg) “Office” means the office of the commissioner.

6           \*~~0610/P3.34~~\*SECTION 2735. 102.01 (2) (dm) of the statutes is amended to  
7           read:

8           102.01 (2) (dm) “Order” means any decision, rule, regulation, direction,  
9           requirement, or standard of the ~~department~~ office, or any other determination  
10          arrived at or decision made by the ~~department~~ office.

11          \*~~0610/P3.35~~\*SECTION 2736. 102.01 (2) (em) of the statutes is repealed.

12          \*~~1461/P2.227~~\*SECTION 2737. 102.04 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

13          102.04 (1) (a) The state, each county, city, town, village, school district, sewer  
14          district, drainage district, ~~long-term care district~~ and other public or quasi-public  
15          corporations therein.

16          \*~~0610/P3.36~~\*SECTION 2738. 102.05 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

17          102.05 (1) An employer who has had no employee at any time within a  
18          continuous period of 2 years shall be ~~deemed~~ considered to have effected withdrawal,  
19          which shall be effective on the last day of ~~such~~ that period. An employer who has not  
20          usually employed 3 employees and who has not paid wages of at least \$500 for  
21          employment in this state in every calendar quarter in a calendar year may file a  
22          withdrawal notice with the ~~department~~ office, which withdrawal shall take effect 30  
23          days after the date of ~~such~~ that filing or at such later date as is specified in the notice.  
24          If an employer who is subject to this chapter only because the employer elected to  
25          become subject to this chapter under sub. (2) cancels or terminates his or her contract

1 for the insurance of compensation under this chapter, that employer is deemed  
2 considered to have effected withdrawal, which shall be effective on the day after the  
3 contract is canceled or terminated.

4 \*~~0610/P3.37~~SECTION 2739. 102.05 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 102.05 (3) ~~Any~~ If a person engaged in farming who has become subject to this  
6 chapter has not employed 6 or more employees, as defined in s. 102.07 (5), on 20 or  
7 more days during the current or previous calendar year, the person may withdraw  
8 by filing with the department office a notice of withdrawal, ~~if the person has not~~  
9 ~~employed 6 or more employees as defined by s. 102.07 (5) on 20 or more days during~~  
10 ~~the current or previous calendar year. Such~~ which withdrawal shall be effective take  
11 effect 30 days after the date of receipt of the notice by the department, office or at such  
12 later date as is specified in the notice. ~~Such~~ A person who withdraws under this  
13 subsection may again become subject to this chapter as provided by in s. 102.04 (1)  
14 (c) and (e).

15 \*~~0610/P3.38~~SECTION 2740. 102.06 of the statutes is amended to read:

16 **102.06 Joint liability of employer and contractor.** An employer shall be  
17 liable for compensation to an employee of a contractor or subcontractor under the  
18 employer who is not subject to this chapter, or who has not complied with the  
19 conditions of s. 102.28 (2) in any case ~~where such~~ in which the employer would have  
20 been liable for compensation if ~~such~~ the employee had been working directly for the  
21 employer, including also work in the erection, alteration, repair, or demolition of  
22 improvements or of fixtures upon premises of ~~such~~ the employer ~~which~~ that are used  
23 or to be used in the operations of ~~such~~ the employer. The contractor or subcontractor,  
24 if subject to this chapter, shall also be liable for ~~such~~ that compensation, but the  
25 employee shall not recover compensation for the same injury from more than one



1 party. ~~The~~ An employer who becomes liable for and who pays ~~such that~~ compensation  
2 may recover the ~~same~~ amount of compensation paid from ~~such that~~ contractor, or  
3 subcontractor, or from any other employer for whom the employee was working at  
4 the time of the injury, if ~~such that~~ contractor, subcontractor, or other employer was  
5 an employer, as defined in s. 102.04. This section does not apply to injuries occurring  
6 on or after the first day of the first July beginning after the day ~~that~~ on which the  
7 ~~secretary~~ commissioner files the certificate under s. 102.80 (3) (a), except that if the  
8 ~~secretary~~ commissioner files the certificate under s. 102.80 (3) (ag) this section does  
9 apply to claims for compensation filed on or after the date specified in that certificate.

10 \*~~0610/P3.39~~\*SECTION 2741. 102.07 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 102.07 (1) (a) Every person, including all officials, in the service of the state,  
12 or of any municipality ~~therein~~ in this state, whether elected or under any  
13 appointment, or contract of hire, express or implied, and whether a resident of this  
14 state or employed or injured within or without the state. The state ~~and~~ or any  
15 municipality may require a bond from a contractor to protect the state or  
16 municipality against compensation to employees of ~~such the~~ contractor or employees  
17 of a subcontractor under the contractor. This paragraph does not apply beginning  
18 on the first day of the first July beginning after the day ~~that~~ on which the ~~secretary~~  
19 commissioner files the certificate under s. 102.80 (3) (a), except that if the ~~secretary~~  
20 commissioner files the certificate under s. 102.80 (3) (ag) this paragraph does apply  
21 to claims for compensation filed on or after the date specified in that certificate.

22 \*~~0610/P3.40~~\*SECTION 2742. 102.07 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 102.07 (1) (b) Every person, including all officials, in the service of the state,  
24 or of any municipality ~~therein~~ in this state, whether elected or under any  
25 appointment, or contract of hire, express or implied, and whether a resident of this

## SECTION 2742

1 state or employed or injured within or without the state. This paragraph first applies  
2 on the first day of the first July beginning after the day that on which the secretary  
3 commissioner files the certificate under s. 102.80 (3) (a), except that if the secretary  
4 commissioner files the certificate under s. 102.80 (3) (ag) this paragraph does apply  
5 to claims for compensation filed on or after the date specified in that certificate.

6 \*~~0610/P3.41~~ SECTION 2743. 102.07 (7) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 102.07 (7) (b) The department office may issue an order under s. 102.31 (1) (b)  
8 permitting the county within which a volunteer fire company or fire department  
9 organized under ch. 213, a legally organized rescue squad, an ambulance service  
10 provider, as defined in s. 256.01 (3), or a legally organized diving team is organized  
11 to assume full liability for the compensation provided under this chapter of all  
12 volunteer members of that company, department, squad, provider or team.

13 \*~~0610/P3.42~~ SECTION 2744. 102.07 (8) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 102.07 (8) (c) The department office may not admit in evidence any state or  
15 federal laws, regulations, documents law, regulation, or document granting  
16 operating authority, or licenses license when determining whether an independent  
17 contractor meets the conditions specified in par. (b) 1. or 3.

18 \*~~0610/P3.43~~ SECTION 2745. 102.07 (11) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 102.07 (11) The department office may by rule prescribe classes of volunteer  
20 workers who may, at the election of the person for whom the service is being  
21 performed, be deemed considered to be employees for the purposes of this chapter.  
22 Election shall be by endorsement upon the that person's worker's compensation  
23 insurance policy with written notice to the department office. In the case of an  
24 employer that is exempt from insuring liability, election shall be by written notice to  
25 the department office. The department office shall by rule prescribe the means and

1 manner in which notice of election by the employer is to be provided to the volunteer  
2 workers.

3 **\*-0921/P1.1\*SECTION 2746.** 102.07 (12m) of the statutes is renumbered 102.07  
4 (12m) (b) and amended to read:

5 102.07 (12m) (b) A student of a public school, ~~as described in s. 115.01 (1), or~~  
6 ~~a private school, as defined in s. 115.001 (3r), or an institution of higher education,~~  
7 while he or she is engaged in performing services as part of a school work training,  
8 work experience, or work study program, and who is not on the payroll of an employer  
9 that is providing the work training or work experience or who is not otherwise  
10 receiving compensation on which a worker's compensation carrier could assess  
11 premiums on that employer, is an employee of a school district ~~or, private school, or~~  
12 institution of higher education that elects under s. 102.077 to name the student as  
13 its employee.

14 **\*-0921/P1.2\*SECTION 2747.** 102.07 (12m) (a) of the statutes is created to read:  
15 102.07 (12m) (a) In this subsection:

16 1. "Institution of higher education" means an institution within the University  
17 of Wisconsin System, a technical college, a tribally controlled college controlled by  
18 an Indian tribe that has elected under s. 102.05 (2) to become subject to this chapter,  
19 a school approved under s. 38.50, or a private, nonprofit institution of higher  
20 education located in this state.

21 2. "Private school" has the meaning given in s. 115.001 (3r).

22 3. "Public school" means a school described in s. 115.01 (1).

23 **\*-0610/P3.44\*SECTION 2748.** 102.076 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 102.076 (2) If a corporation has not more than 10 stockholders, not more than  
25 2 officers, and no other employees and is not otherwise required under this chapter

## SECTION 2748

1 to have a policy of worker's compensation insurance, an officer of that corporation  
2 who elects not to be subject to this chapter shall file a notice of that election with the  
3 department office on a form approved by the department office. The election is  
4 effective until the officer rescinds it the election by notifying the department office  
5 in writing.

6 \*~~0921/P1.3~~\*SECTION 2749. 102.077 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 102.077 (1) A school district ~~or a~~, private school, ~~as defined in s. 115.001 (3r),~~  
8 or institution of higher education may elect to name as its employee for purposes of  
9 this chapter a student described in s. 102.07 (12m) (b) by an endorsement on its policy  
10 of worker's compensation insurance or, if the school district ~~or~~, private school, or  
11 institution of higher education is exempt from the duty to insure under s. 102.28 (2)  
12 (a), by filing a declaration with the department in the manner provided in s. 102.31  
13 (2) (a) naming the student as an employee of the school district ~~or~~, private school, or  
14 institution of higher education for purposes of this chapter. A declaration under this  
15 subsection shall list the name of the student to be covered under this chapter, the  
16 name and address of the employer that is providing the work training or work  
17 experience for that student, and the title, if any, of the work training, work  
18 experience, or work study program in which the student is participating.

19 \*~~0610/P3.45~~\*SECTION 2750. 102.077 (1) of the statutes, as affected by 2015  
20 Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

21 102.077 (1) A school district, private school, or institution of higher education  
22 may elect to name as its employee for purposes of this chapter a student described  
23 in s. 102.07 (12m) (b) by an endorsement on its policy of worker's compensation  
24 insurance or, if the school district, private school, or institution of higher education  
25 is exempt from the duty to insure under s. 102.28 (2) (a), by filing a declaration with

1 the ~~department~~ office in the manner provided in s. 102.31 (2) (a) naming the student  
2 as an employee of the school district, private school, or institution of higher education  
3 for purposes of this chapter. A declaration under this subsection shall list the name  
4 of the student to be covered under this chapter, the name and address of the employer  
5 that is providing the work training or work experience for that student, and the title,  
6 if any, of the work training, work experience, or work study program in which the  
7 student is participating.

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s. 102.077 (1). This SECTION has been affected by drafts  
with the following LRB numbers: -0610/P2 and LRB-0921/P1.

8 **\*-0921/P1.4\*SECTION 2751.** 102.077 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:  
9 102.077 (2) A school district ~~or~~, private school, or institution of higher  
10 education may revoke a declaration under sub. (1) by providing written notice to the  
11 department in the manner provided in s. 102.31 (2) (a), the student, and the employer  
12 who is providing the work training or work experience for that student. A revocation  
13 under this subsection is effective 30 days after the department receives notice of that  
14 revocation.

15 **\*-0610/P3.46\*SECTION 2752.** 102.077 (2) of the statutes, as affected by 2015  
16 Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

17 102.077 (2) A school district, private school, or institution of higher education  
18 may revoke a declaration under sub. (1) by providing written notice to the  
19 department office in the manner provided in s. 102.31 (2) (a), the student, and the  
20 employer who is providing the work training or work experience for that student.  
21 A revocation under this subsection is effective 30 days after the department office  
22 receives notice of that revocation.

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s.102.077 (2). This SECTION has been affected by drafts  
with the following LRB numbers: -0610/P2 and LRB-0921/P1.

**SECTION 2753**

1           \***-0610/P3.47**\***SECTION 2753.** 102.08 of the statutes is amended to read:

2           **102.08 Administration for state employees.** The department of  
3 administration has responsibility for the timely delivery of benefits payable under  
4 this chapter to employees of the state and their dependents and other functions of  
5 the state as an employer under this chapter. The department of administration may  
6 delegate ~~this authority~~ that responsibility to employing departments and agencies  
7 and require such reports as it ~~deems~~ considers necessary to accomplish this purpose.  
8 The department of administration or its delegated authorities shall file with the  
9 ~~department of workforce development~~ office the reports that are required of all  
10 employers. The ~~department of workforce development~~ office shall monitor the  
11 delivery of benefits payable under this chapter to state employees and their  
12 dependents and shall consult with and advise the department of administration in  
13 the manner and at the times necessary to ensure prompt and proper delivery of those  
14 benefits.

15           \***-0610/P3.48**\***SECTION 2754.** 102.11 (1) (am) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
16 read:

17           102.11 (1) (am) 1. The employee is a member of a class of employees that does  
18 the same type of work at the same location and, in the case of an employee in the  
19 service of the state, is employed in the same office, department, independent agency,  
20 authority, institution, association, society, or other body in state government or, if the  
21 ~~department~~ office determines appropriate, in the same subunit of an office,  
22 department, independent agency, authority, institution, association, society, or other  
23 body in state government.

24           \***-0610/P3.49**\***SECTION 2755.** 102.12 of the statutes is amended to read:

1           **102.12 Notice of injury, exception, laches.** No claim for compensation may  
2 be maintained unless, within 30 days after the occurrence of the injury or within 30  
3 days after the employee knew or ought to have known the nature of his or her  
4 disability and its relation to the employment, actual notice was received by the  
5 employer or by an officer, manager, or designated representative of an employer. If  
6 no representative has been designated by posters placed in one or more conspicuous  
7 places where notices to employees are customarily posted, then notice received by  
8 any superior is sufficient. Absence of notice does not bar recovery if it is found that  
9 the employer was not misled ~~thereby~~ by that absence. Regardless of whether notice  
10 was received, if no payment of compensation, other than medical treatment or burial  
11 expense, is made, ~~and~~ and if no application is filed with the ~~department~~ office within  
12 2 years ~~from~~ after the date of the injury or death, ~~or from~~ or the date the employee  
13 or his or her dependent knew or ought to have known the nature of the disability and  
14 its relation to the employment, the right to compensation ~~therefor~~ for the injury or  
15 death is barred, except that the right to compensation is not barred if the employer  
16 knew or should have known, within the 2-year period, that the employee had  
17 sustained the injury on which the claim is based. Issuance of notice of a hearing on  
18 the ~~department's~~ division's own motion has the same effect for the purposes of this  
19 section as the filing of an application. This section does not affect any claim barred  
20 under s. 102.17 (4).

21           \*~~0610/P3.50~~\***SECTION 2756.** 102.125 of the statutes is amended to read:

22           **102.125 Fraudulent claims reporting and investigation.** If an insurer or  
23 self-insured employer has evidence that a claim is false or fraudulent in violation of  
24 s. 943.395 and if the insurer or self-insured employer is satisfied that reporting the  
25 claim to the ~~department~~ office will not impede its ability to defend the claim, the

## SECTION 2756

1 insurer or self-insured employer shall report the claim to the ~~department~~ office. The  
2 ~~department~~ office may require an insurer or self-insured employer to investigate an  
3 allegedly false or fraudulent claim and may provide the insurer or self-insured  
4 employer with any records of the ~~department~~ office relating to that claim. An insurer  
5 or self-insured employer that investigates a claim under this section shall report on  
6 the results of that investigation to the ~~department~~ office. If based on the  
7 investigation the ~~department~~ office has a reasonable basis to believe that a violation  
8 of s. 943.395 has occurred, the ~~department~~ office shall refer the results of the  
9 investigation to the district attorney of the county in which the alleged violation  
10 occurred for prosecution.

11 \*~~0610/P3.51~~\*SECTION 2757. 102.13 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 102.13 (1) (c) So long as the employee, after a written request of the employer  
13 or insurer ~~which~~ that complies with par. (b), refuses to submit to or in any way  
14 obstructs the examination, the employee's right to begin or maintain any proceeding  
15 for the collection of compensation is suspended, except as provided in sub. (4). If the  
16 employee refuses to submit to the examination after direction by the ~~department~~  
17 division or an examiner, or in any way obstructs the examination, the employee's  
18 right to the weekly indemnity ~~which~~ that accrues and becomes payable during the  
19 period of that refusal or obstruction, is barred, except as provided in sub. (4).

20 \*~~0610/P3.52~~\*SECTION 2758. 102.13 (1) (d) 2. of the statutes is amended to  
21 read:

22 102.13 (1) (d) 2. Any physician, chiropractor, psychologist, dentist, physician  
23 assistant, advanced practice nurse prescriber, or podiatrist who attended a worker's  
24 compensation claimant for any condition or complaint reasonably related to the



1 condition for which the claimant claims compensation may be required to testify  
2 before the ~~department~~ division when the ~~department~~ division so directs.

3 \*~~0610/P3.53~~\*SECTION 2759. 102.13 (1) (d) 3. of the statutes is amended to  
4 read:

5 102.13 (1) (d) 3. Notwithstanding any statutory provisions except par. (e), any  
6 physician, chiropractor, psychologist, dentist, physician assistant, advanced  
7 practice nurse prescriber, or podiatrist attending a worker's compensation claimant  
8 for any condition or complaint reasonably related to the condition for which the  
9 claimant claims compensation may furnish to the employee, employer, worker's  
10 compensation insurer, ~~or the department~~ the office, or the division information and  
11 reports relative to a compensation claim.

12 \*~~0610/P3.54~~\*SECTION 2760. 102.13 (1) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 102.13 (1) (f) If an employee claims compensation under s. 102.81 (1), the  
14 ~~department~~ office may require the employee to submit to physical or vocational  
15 examinations under this subsection.

16 \*~~0610/P3.55~~\*SECTION 2761. 102.13 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 102.13 (2) (a) An employee who reports an injury alleged to be work-related  
18 or who files an application for hearing waives any physician-patient,  
19 psychologist-patient or chiropractor-patient privilege with respect to any condition  
20 or complaint reasonably related to the condition for which the employee claims  
21 compensation. Notwithstanding ss. 51.30 and 146.82 and any other law, any  
22 physician, chiropractor, psychologist, dentist, podiatrist, physician assistant,  
23 advanced practice nurse prescriber, hospital, or health care provider shall, within a  
24 reasonable time after written request by the employee, employer, worker's  
25 compensation insurer, ~~or department~~ office, or division, or its representative, provide

## SECTION 2761

1 that person with any information or written material reasonably related to any  
2 injury for which the employee claims compensation.

3 \*~~0610/P3.56~~\*SECTION 2762. 102.13 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 102.13 (2) (c) Except as provided in this paragraph, if an injured employee has  
5 a period of temporary disability that exceeds 3 weeks or a permanent disability, if the  
6 injured employee has undergone surgery to treat his or her injury, other than surgery  
7 to correct a hernia, or if the injured employee sustained an eye injury requiring  
8 medical treatment on 3 or more occasions off the employer's premises, the  
9 department office may by rule require the insurer or self-insured employer to submit  
10 to the department office a final report of the employee's treating practitioner. The  
11 department office may not require an insurer or self-insured employer to submit to  
12 the department office a final report of an employee's treating practitioner when the  
13 insurer or self-insured employer denies the employee's claim for compensation and  
14 the employee does not contest that denial. A treating practitioner may charge a  
15 reasonable fee for the completion of the final report, but may not require prepayment  
16 of that fee. An insurer or self-insured employer that disputes the reasonableness of  
17 a fee charged for the completion of a treatment practitioner's final report may submit  
18 that dispute to the department office for resolution under s. 102.16 (2).

19 \*~~0610/P3.57~~\*SECTION 2763. 102.13 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 102.13 (3) If 2 or more physicians, chiropractors, psychologists, dentists or  
21 podiatrists disagree as to the extent of an injured employee's temporary disability,  
22 the end of an employee's healing period, an employee's ability to return to work at  
23 suitable available employment, or the necessity for further treatment or for a  
24 particular type of treatment, the department division may appoint another  
25 physician, chiropractor, psychologist, dentist or podiatrist to examine the employee

1 and render an opinion as soon as possible. The ~~department~~ division shall promptly  
2 notify the parties of this appointment. If the employee has not returned to work,  
3 payment for temporary disability shall continue until the ~~department~~ division  
4 receives the opinion. The employer or its insurance carrier or both shall pay for the  
5 examination and opinion. The employer or insurance carrier or both shall receive  
6 appropriate credit for any overpayment to the employee determined by the  
7 ~~department~~ division after receipt of the opinion.

8 \*~~0610/P3.58~~\*SECTION 2764. 102.13 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

9 102.13 (4) ~~The rights of employees~~ right of an employee to begin or maintain  
10 proceedings for the collection of compensation and to receive weekly indemnities  
11 ~~which that~~ accrue and become payable shall not be suspended or barred under sub.  
12 (1) when ~~an~~ the employee refuses to submit to a physical examination, upon the  
13 request of the employer or worker's compensation insurer or at the direction of the  
14 ~~department~~ division or an examiner, ~~which that~~ would require the employee to travel  
15 a distance of 100 miles or more from his or her place of residence, unless the employee  
16 has claimed compensation for treatment from a practitioner whose office is located  
17 100 miles or more from the employee's place of residence or the ~~department~~ division  
18 or examiner determines that any other circumstances warrant the examination. If  
19 the employee has claimed compensation for treatment from a practitioner whose  
20 office is located 100 miles or more from the employee's place of residence, the  
21 employer or insurer may request, or the ~~department~~ division or an examiner may  
22 direct, the employee to submit to a physical examination in the area where the  
23 employee's treatment practitioner is located.

24 \*~~0610/P3.59~~\*SECTION 2765. 102.13 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

**SECTION 2765**

1           102.13 (5) The ~~department~~ division may refuse to receive testimony as to  
2 conditions determined from an autopsy if it appears that the party offering the  
3 testimony had procured the autopsy and had failed to make reasonable effort to  
4 notify at least one party in adverse interest or the ~~department~~ division at least 12  
5 hours before the autopsy of the time and place ~~it~~ at which the autopsy would be  
6 performed, or that the autopsy was performed by or at the direction of the coroner  
7 or medical examiner or at the direction of the district attorney for purposes not  
8 authorized by under ch. 979. The ~~department~~ division may withhold findings until  
9 an autopsy is held in accordance with its directions.

10           \***-0610/P3.60**\***SECTION 2766.** 102.14 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

11           **102.14 (title) Jurisdiction of department office; advisory committee.**

12           \***-0610/P3.61**\***SECTION 2767.** 102.14 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

13           102.14 (1) ~~This~~ Except as otherwise provided, this chapter shall be  
14 administered by the department office.

15           \***-0610/P3.62**\***SECTION 2768.** 102.14 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

16           102.14 (2) The council on worker's compensation shall advise the ~~department~~  
17 office in carrying out the purposes of this chapter. ~~Such council,~~ shall submit its  
18 recommendations with respect to amendments to this chapter to each regular  
19 session of the legislature, and shall report its views upon any pending bill relating  
20 to this chapter to the proper legislative committee. At the request of the chairpersons  
21 of the senate and assembly committees on labor, the ~~department~~ office shall schedule  
22 a meeting of the council with the members of the senate and assembly committees  
23 on labor to review and discuss matters of legislative concern arising under this  
24 chapter.

25           \***-0610/P3.63**\***SECTION 2769.** 102.15 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           102.15 (1) Subject to this chapter, the department division may adopt its own  
2 rules of procedure and may change the same from time to time.

3           \*~~0610/P3.64~~\*SECTION 2770. 102.15 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

4           102.15 (2) The department division may provide by rule the conditions under  
5 which transcripts or electronic recordings of testimony and proceedings shall be  
6 furnished.

7           \*~~0610/P3.65~~\*SECTION 2771. 102.15 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

8           102.15 (3) All testimony at any hearing held under this chapter shall be taken  
9 down ~~by a stenographic reporter, except that in case of an emergency, as determined~~  
10 by recorded by electronic means. That testimony need not be transcribed, unless the  
11 examiner conducting the hearing, testimony may be recorded by a recording machine  
12 orders otherwise. The division shall furnish a copy of an electronic recording made  
13 under this subsection or a transcript ordered under this subsection to the parties  
14 upon payment of any fee required by the division by rule.

15           \*~~0610/P3.66~~\*SECTION 2772. 102.16 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

16           102.16 (1) Any controversy concerning compensation or a violation of sub. (3),  
17 including ~~controversies~~ a controversy in which the state may be a party, shall be  
18 submitted to the department division in the manner and with the effect provided in  
19 this chapter. ~~Every compromise of any claim for compensation may be reviewed and~~  
20 ~~set aside, modified or confirmed by the department within~~ Within one year from after  
21 ~~the date the~~ on which a compromise of any claim for compensation is filed with the  
22 ~~department, or from division or the date on which~~ an award has been entered, based  
23 ~~thereon, or the department may take that action based on a compromise, the~~  
24 division, on its own motion or upon application made within one year that period,  
25 may review and set aside, modify, or confirm the compromise. Unless the word

## SECTION 2772

1 “compromise” appears in a stipulation of settlement, the settlement shall not be  
2 deemed considered a compromise, and further claim is not barred except as provided  
3 in s. 102.17 (4) regardless of whether an award is made. The employer, insurer, or  
4 dependent under s. 102.51 (5) shall have equal rights with the employee to have  
5 review of a compromise or any other stipulation of settlement reviewed under this  
6 subsection. Upon petition filed with the ~~department~~ division, the ~~department~~  
7 division may set aside the award or otherwise determine the rights of the parties.

8 \*~~0610/P3.67~~SECTION 2773. 102.16 (1m) (a) of the statutes is amended to  
9 read:

10 102.16 (1m) (a) If an insurer or self-insured employer concedes by compromise  
11 under sub. (1) or stipulation under s. 102.18 (1) (a) that the insurer or self-insured  
12 employer is liable under this chapter for any health services provided to an injured  
13 employee by a health service provider, but disputes the reasonableness of the fee  
14 charged by the health service provider, the ~~department~~ division may include in its  
15 order confirming the compromise or stipulation a determination made by the office  
16 under sub. (2) as to the reasonableness of the fee or ~~the department, if such a~~  
17 determination has not yet been made, the division may notify, or direct the insurer  
18 or self-insured employer to notify, the health service provider under sub. (2) (b) that  
19 the reasonableness of the fee is in dispute. ~~The department shall deny payment of~~  
20 ~~a health service fee that the department determines under this paragraph to be~~  
21 ~~unreasonable. A health service provider and an insurer or self-insured employer~~  
22 ~~that are parties to a fee dispute under this paragraph are bound by the department's~~  
23 ~~determination under this paragraph on the reasonableness of the disputed fee,~~  
24 ~~unless that determination is set aside, reversed, or modified by the department~~  
25 ~~under sub. (2) (f) or is set aside on judicial review as provided in sub. (2) (f).~~

1           \*~~0610/P3.68~~SECTION 2774. 102.16 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to  
2 read:

3           102.16 (1m) (b) If an insurer or self-insured employer concedes by compromise  
4 under sub. (1) or stipulation under s. 102.18 (1) (a) that the insurer or self-insured  
5 employer is liable under this chapter for any treatment provided to an injured  
6 employee by a health service provider, but disputes the necessity of the treatment,  
7 the department division may include in its order confirming the compromise or  
8 stipulation a determination made by the office under sub. (2m) as to the necessity of  
9 the treatment or ~~the department, if such a determination has not yet been made, the~~  
10 division may notify, or direct the insurer or self-insured employer to notify, the  
11 health service provider under sub. (2m) (b) that the necessity of the treatment is in  
12 dispute. ~~Before determining under this paragraph the necessity of treatment~~  
13 ~~provided to an injured employee, the department may, but is not required to, obtain~~  
14 ~~the opinion of an expert selected by the department who is qualified as provided in~~  
15 ~~sub. (2m) (e). The standards promulgated under sub. (2m) (g) shall be applied by an~~  
16 ~~expert and by the department in rendering an opinion as to, and in determining,~~  
17 ~~necessity of treatment under this paragraph. In cases in which no standards~~  
18 ~~promulgated under sub. (2m) (g) apply, the department shall find the facts regarding~~  
19 ~~necessity of treatment. The department shall deny payment for any treatment that~~  
20 ~~the department determines under this paragraph to be unnecessary. A health~~  
21 ~~service provider and an insurer or self-insured employer that are parties to a dispute~~  
22 ~~under this paragraph over the necessity of treatment are bound by the department's~~  
23 ~~determination under this paragraph on the necessity of the disputed treatment,~~  
24 ~~unless that determination is set aside, reversed, or modified by the department~~  
25 ~~under sub. (2m) (e) or is set aside on judicial review as provided in sub. (2m) (e).~~

## SECTION 2775

1           \*~~0610/P3.69~~\*SECTION 2775. 102.16 (1m) (c) of the statutes is amended to  
2 read:

3           102.16 (1m) (c) If an insurer or self-insured employer concedes by compromise  
4 under sub. (1) or stipulation under s. 102.18 (1) (a) that the insurer or self-insured  
5 employer is liable under this chapter for the cost of a prescription drug dispensed  
6 under s. 102.425 (2) for outpatient use by an injured employee, but disputes the  
7 reasonableness of the amount charged for the prescription drug, the department  
8 division may include in its order confirming the compromise or stipulation a  
9 determination made by the office under s. 102.425 (4m) as to the reasonableness of  
10 the prescription drug charge or ~~the department, if such a determination has not yet~~  
11 been made, the division may notify, or direct the insurer or self-insured employer to  
12 notify, the pharmacist or practitioner dispensing the prescription drug under s.  
13 102.425 (4m) (b) that the reasonableness of the prescription drug charge is in  
14 dispute. ~~The department shall deny payment of a prescription drug charge that the~~  
15 ~~department determines under this paragraph to be unreasonable. A pharmacist or~~  
16 ~~practitioner and an insurer or self-insured employer that are parties to a dispute~~  
17 ~~under this paragraph over the reasonableness of a prescription drug charge are~~  
18 ~~bound by the department's determination under this paragraph on the~~  
19 ~~reasonableness of the disputed prescription drug charge, unless that determination~~  
20 ~~is set aside, reversed, or modified by the department under s. 102.425 (4m) (e) or is~~  
21 ~~set aside on judicial review as provided in s. 102.425 (4m) (e).~~

22           \*~~0610/P3.70~~\*SECTION 2776. 102.16 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

23           102.16 (2) (a) Except as provided in this paragraph, the department office has  
24 jurisdiction ~~under this subsection, sub. (1m) (a), and s. 102.17~~ to resolve a dispute  
25 between a health service provider and an insurer or self-insured employer over the



1 reasonableness of a fee charged by the health service provider for health services  
2 provided to an injured employee who claims benefits under this chapter. A health  
3 service provider may not submit a fee dispute to the department office under this  
4 subsection before all treatment by the health service provider of the employee's  
5 injury has ended if the amount in controversy, whether based on a single charge or  
6 a combination of charges for one or more days of service, is less than \$25. After all  
7 treatment by a health service provider of an employee's injury has ended, the health  
8 service provider may submit any fee dispute to the department office, regardless of  
9 the amount in controversy. The department office shall deny payment of a health  
10 service fee that the department office determines under this subsection to be  
11 unreasonable.

12 \***-0610/P3.71\*SECTION 2777.** 102.16 (2) (am) of the statutes is amended to  
13 read:

14 102.16 (2) (am) A health service provider and an insurer or self-insured  
15 employer that are parties to a fee dispute under this subsection are bound by the  
16 department's office's determination under this subsection on the reasonableness of  
17 the disputed fee, unless that determination is set aside on judicial review as provided  
18 in par. (f).

19 \***-0610/P3.72\*SECTION 2778.** 102.16 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 102.16 (2) (b) An insurer or self-insured employer that disputes the  
21 reasonableness of a fee charged by a health service provider or the department office  
22 under sub. (1m) (a) or s. 102.18 (1) (bg) 1. shall provide reasonable written notice to  
23 the health service provider that the fee is being disputed. After receiving reasonable  
24 written notice under this paragraph or under sub. (1m) (a) or s. 102.18 (1) (bg) 1. that  
25 a health service fee is being disputed, a health service provider may not collect the

## SECTION 2778

1       disputed fee from, or bring an action for collection of the disputed fee against, the  
2       employee who received the services for which the fee was charged.

3       \*~~0610/P3.73~~\*SECTION 2779. 102.16 (2) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4       102.16 (2) (c) After a fee dispute is submitted to the department office, the  
5       insurer or self-insured employer that is a party to the dispute shall provide to the  
6       department office information on that fee and information on fees charged by other  
7       health service providers for comparable services. The insurer or self-insured  
8       employer shall obtain the information on comparable fees from a database that is  
9       certified by the department office under par. (h). Except as provided in par. (e) 1., if  
10      the insurer or self-insured employer does not provide the information required  
11      under this paragraph, the department office shall determine that the disputed fee  
12      is reasonable and order that it be paid. If the insurer or self-insured employer  
13      provides the information required under this paragraph, the department office shall  
14      use that information to determine the reasonableness of the disputed fee.

15      \*~~0610/P3.74~~\*SECTION 2780. 102.16 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

16      102.16 (2) (d) The department office shall analyze the information provided to  
17      the department office under par. (c) according to the criteria provided in this  
18      paragraph to determine the reasonableness of the disputed fee. Except as provided  
19      in 2011 Wisconsin Act 183, section 30 (2) (b), the department office shall determine  
20      that a disputed fee is reasonable and order that the disputed fee be paid if that fee  
21      is at or below the mean fee for the health service procedure for which the disputed  
22      fee was charged, plus 1.2 standard deviations from that mean, as shown by data from  
23      a database that is certified by the department office under par. (h). Except as  
24      provided in 2011 Wisconsin Act 183, section 30 (2) (b), the department office shall  
25      determine that a disputed fee is unreasonable and order that a reasonable fee be paid

1 if the disputed fee is above the mean fee for the health service procedure for which  
2 the disputed fee was charged, plus 1.2 standard deviations from that mean, as shown  
3 by data from a database that is certified by the department office under par. (h),  
4 unless the health service provider proves to the satisfaction of the department office  
5 that a higher fee is justified because the service provided in the disputed case was  
6 more difficult or more complicated to provide than in the usual case.

7 \*~~0610/P3.75~~\*SECTION 2781. 102.16 (2) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
8 read:

9 102.16 (2) (e) 1. Subject to subd. 2., if an insurer or self-insured employer that  
10 disputes the reasonableness of a fee charged by a health service provider cannot  
11 provide information on fees charged by other health service providers for comparable  
12 services because the database to which the insurer or self-insured employer  
13 subscribes is not able to provide accurate information for the health service  
14 procedure at issue, the department office may use any other information that the  
15 department office considers to be reliable and relevant to the disputed fee to  
16 determine the reasonableness of the disputed fee.

17 \*~~0610/P3.76~~\*SECTION 2782. 102.16 (2) (e) 2. of the statutes is amended to  
18 read:

19 102.16 (2) (e) 2. Notwithstanding subd. 1., the department office may use only  
20 a hospital radiology database that has been certified by the department office under  
21 par. (h) to determine the reasonableness of a hospital fee for radiology services.

22 \*~~0610/P3.77~~\*SECTION 2783. 102.16 (2) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 102.16 (2) (f) Within 30 days after a determination under this subsection, the  
24 department office may set aside, reverse, or modify the determination for any reason  
25 that the department office considers sufficient. Within 60 days after a determination

**SECTION 2783**

1 under this subsection, the ~~department~~ office may set aside, reverse, or modify the  
2 determination on grounds of mistake. A health service provider, insurer, or  
3 self-insured employer that is aggrieved by a determination of the ~~department~~ office  
4 under this subsection may seek judicial review of that determination in the same  
5 manner that compensation claims are reviewed under s. 102.23.

6 \*~~0610/P3.78~~\***SECTION 2784.** 102.16 (2) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 102.16 (2) (h) The ~~department~~ office shall promulgate rules establishing  
8 procedures and requirements for the fee dispute resolution process under this  
9 subsection, including rules specifying the standards that health service fee  
10 databases must meet for certification under this paragraph. Using those standards,  
11 the ~~department~~ office shall certify databases of the health service fees that various  
12 health service providers charge. In certifying databases under this paragraph, the  
13 ~~department~~ office shall certify at least one database of hospital fees for radiology  
14 services, including diagnostic and interventional radiology, diagnostic ultrasound,  
15 and nuclear medicine.

16 \*~~0610/P3.79~~\***SECTION 2785.** 102.16 (2m) (a) of the statutes is amended to  
17 read:

18 102.16 (2m) (a) Except as provided in this paragraph, the ~~department~~ office  
19 has jurisdiction ~~under this subsection, sub. (1m) (b), and s. 102.17~~ to resolve a dispute  
20 between a health service provider and an insurer or self-insured employer over the  
21 necessity of treatment provided for an injured employee who claims benefits under  
22 this chapter. A health service provider may not submit a dispute over necessity of  
23 treatment to the ~~department~~ office under this subsection before all treatment by the  
24 health service provider of the employee's injury has ended if the amount in  
25 controversy, whether based on a single charge or a combination of charges for one or

1 more days of service, is less than \$25. After all treatment by a health service provider  
2 of an employee's injury has ended, the health service provider may submit any  
3 dispute over necessity of treatment to the department office, regardless of the  
4 amount in controversy. The department office shall deny payment for any treatment  
5 that the department office determines under this subsection to be unnecessary.

6 \***-0610/P3.80**\*SECTION 2786. 102.16 (2m) (am) of the statutes is amended to  
7 read:

8 102.16 (2m) (am) A health service provider and an insurer or self-insured  
9 employer that are parties to a dispute under this subsection over the necessity of  
10 treatment are bound by the department's office's determination under this  
11 subsection on the necessity of the disputed treatment, unless that determination is  
12 set aside on judicial review as provided in par. (e).

13 \***-0610/P3.81**\*SECTION 2787. 102.16 (2m) (b) of the statutes is amended to  
14 read:

15 102.16 (2m) (b) An insurer or self-insured employer that disputes the  
16 necessity of treatment provided by a health service provider or the department  
17 division under sub. (1m) (b) or s. 102.18 (1) (bg) 2. shall provide reasonable written  
18 notice to the health service provider that the necessity of that treatment is being  
19 disputed. After receiving reasonable written notice under this paragraph or under  
20 sub. (1m) (b) or s. 102.18 (1) (bg) 2. that the necessity of treatment is being disputed,  
21 a health service provider may not collect a fee for that disputed treatment from, or  
22 bring an action for collection of the fee for that disputed treatment against, the  
23 employee who received the treatment.

24 \***-0610/P3.82**\*SECTION 2788. 102.16 (2m) (c) of the statutes is amended to  
25 read:

## SECTION 2788

1           102.16 (2m) (c) Before determining under this subsection the necessity of  
2 treatment provided for an injured employee who claims benefits under this chapter,  
3 the department office shall obtain a written opinion on the necessity of the treatment  
4 in dispute from an expert selected by the department office. To qualify as an expert,  
5 a person must be licensed to practice the same health care profession as the  
6 individual health service provider whose treatment is under review and must either  
7 be performing services for an impartial health care services review organization or  
8 be a member of an independent panel of experts established by the department office  
9 under par. (f). The standards promulgated under par. (g) shall be applied by an  
10 expert and by the department office in rendering an opinion as to, and in  
11 determining, necessity of treatment under this paragraph. In cases in which no  
12 standards promulgated under sub. (2m) (g) apply, the department office shall find  
13 the facts regarding necessity of treatment. The department office shall adopt the  
14 written opinion of the expert as the department's office's determination on the issues  
15 covered in the written opinion, unless the health service provider or the insurer or  
16 self-insured employer present clear and convincing written evidence that the  
17 expert's opinion is in error.

18           \*~~0610/P3.83~~SECTION 2789. 102.16 (2m) (d) of the statutes is amended to  
19 read:

20           102.16 (2m) (d) The department office may charge a party to a dispute over the  
21 necessity of treatment provided for an injured employee who claims benefits under  
22 this chapter for the full cost of obtaining the written opinion of the expert under par.  
23 (c). The department office shall charge the insurer or self-insured employer for the  
24 full cost of obtaining the written opinion of the expert for the first dispute that a  
25 particular individual health service provider is involved in, unless the department

1 office determines that the individual health service provider's position in the dispute  
2 is frivolous or based on fraudulent representations. In a subsequent dispute  
3 involving the same individual health service provider, the department office shall  
4 charge the losing party to the dispute for the full cost of obtaining the written opinion  
5 of the expert.

6 \*~~0610/P3.84~~SECTION 2790. 102.16 (2m) (e) of the statutes is amended to  
7 read:

8 102.16 (2m) (e) Within 30 days after a determination under this subsection, the  
9 department office may set aside, reverse, or modify the determination for any reason  
10 that the department office considers sufficient. Within 60 days after a determination  
11 under this subsection, the department office may set aside, reverse, or modify the  
12 determination on grounds of mistake. A health service provider, insurer, or  
13 self-insured employer that is aggrieved by a determination of the department office  
14 under this subsection may seek judicial review of that determination in the same  
15 manner that compensation claims are reviewed under s. 102.23.

16 \*~~0610/P3.85~~SECTION 2791. 102.16 (2m) (f) of the statutes is amended to  
17 read:

18 102.16 (2m) (f) The department office may contract with an impartial health  
19 care services review organization to provide the expert opinions required under par.  
20 (c), or establish a panel of experts to provide those opinions, or both. If the  
21 department office establishes a panel of experts to provide the expert opinions  
22 required under par. (c), the department office may pay the members of that panel a  
23 reasonable fee, plus actual and necessary expenses, for their services.

24 \*~~0610/P3.86~~SECTION 2792. 102.16 (2m) (g) of the statutes is amended to  
25 read:

## SECTION 2792

1           102.16 (2m) (g) The ~~department~~ office shall promulgate rules establishing  
2 procedures and requirements for the necessity of treatment dispute resolution  
3 process under this subsection, including rules setting the fees under par. (f) and rules  
4 establishing standards for determining the necessity of treatment provided to an  
5 injured employee. Before the ~~department~~ office may amend the rules establishing  
6 those standards, the ~~department~~ office shall establish an advisory committee under  
7 s. 227.13 composed of health care providers providing treatment under s. 102.42 to  
8 advise the ~~department~~ office and the council on worker's compensation on amending  
9 those rules.

10           \*~~-0610/P3.87~~\*SECTION 2793. 102.16 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

11           102.16 (4) The ~~department~~ division has jurisdiction to pass on any question  
12 arising out of sub. (3) and has jurisdiction to order the employer to reimburse an  
13 employee or other person for any sum deducted from wages or paid by him or her in  
14 violation of that subsection. In addition to the penalty provided in s. 102.85 (1), any  
15 employer violating sub. (3) shall be liable to an injured employee for the reasonable  
16 value of the necessary services rendered to that employee pursuant to under any  
17 arrangement made in violation of sub. (3) without regard to that employee's actual  
18 disbursements for ~~the same~~ those services.

19           \*~~-0610/P3.88~~\*SECTION 2794. 102.17 (1) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
20 read:

21           102.17 (1) (a) 1. Upon the filing with the ~~department~~ division by any party in  
22 interest of any application in writing stating the general nature of any claim as to  
23 which any dispute or controversy may have arisen, the ~~department~~ division shall  
24 electronically deliver or mail a copy of the application to all other parties in interest,



1 and the insurance carrier shall be considered a party in interest. The department  
2 division may bring in additional parties by service of a copy of the application.

3 \***-0610/P3.89\*SECTION 2795.** 102.17 (1) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to  
4 read:

5 102.17 (1) (a) 2. Subject to subd. 3., the department division shall cause notice  
6 of hearing on the application to be given to each interested party, by service of that  
7 notice on the interested party personally, by electronically delivering a copy of that  
8 notice to the interested party, or by mailing a copy of that notice to the interested  
9 party's last-known address at least 10 days before the hearing. If a party in interest  
10 is located without this state, and has no post-office address within this state, the  
11 copy of the application and copies of all notices shall be filed with the department  
12 of financial institutions and professional standards and shall also be sent by  
13 registered or certified mail to the last-known post-office address of the party. Such  
14 filing and mailing shall constitute sufficient service, with the same effect as if served  
15 upon a party located within this state.

\*\*\*\*NOTE: This is reconciled s.102.17 (1) (a) 2. This SECTION has been affected by  
drafts with the following LRB numbers: -0610/P2 and LRB-0807/P5.

16 \***-0610/P3.90\*SECTION 2796.** 102.17 (1) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to  
17 read:

18 102.17 (1) (a) 3. If a party in interest claims that the employer or insurer has  
19 acted with malice or bad faith, as described in s. 102.18 (1) (b) or (bp), that party shall  
20 provide written notice stating with reasonable specificity the basis for the claim to  
21 the employer, the insurer, the office, and the ~~department~~ division before the  
22 ~~department~~ division schedules a hearing on the claim of malice or bad faith.

## SECTION 2797

1           \***-0610/P3.91**\*SECTION 2797. 102.17 (1) (a) 4. of the statutes is amended to  
2 read:

3           102.17 (1) (a) 4. The hearing may be adjourned in the discretion of the  
4 department division, and hearings may be held at such places as the department  
5 division designates, within or without the state. The department division may also  
6 arrange to have hearings held by the commission, officer, or tribunal having  
7 authority to hear cases arising under the worker's compensation law of any other  
8 state, of the District of Columbia, or of any territory of the United States, with the  
9 testimony and proceedings at any such hearing to be reported to the department  
10 division and to be made part of the record in the case. Any evidence so taken shall  
11 be subject to rebuttal upon final hearing before the department division.

12           \***-0610/P3.92**\*SECTION 2798. 102.17 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

13           102.17 (1) (b) In any dispute or controversy pending before the department  
14 division, the department division may direct the parties to appear before an  
15 examiner for a conference to consider the clarification of issues, the joining of  
16 additional parties, the necessity or desirability of amendments to the pleadings, the  
17 obtaining of admissions of fact or of documents, records, reports, and bills ~~which~~ that  
18 may avoid unnecessary proof, and such other matters as may aid in disposition of the  
19 dispute or controversy. After ~~this~~ that conference the department division may issue  
20 an order requiring disclosure or exchange of any information or written material  
21 ~~which it~~ that the division considers material to the timely and orderly disposition of  
22 the dispute or controversy. If a party fails to disclose or exchange that information  
23 within the time stated in the order, the department division may issue an order  
24 dismissing the claim without prejudice or excluding evidence or testimony relating